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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I've asked that the

          3  Members next door, in order to start the meeting we

          4  need a quorum, so what we are going to do is, as

          5  soon as we have a quorum, you guys can go back to

          6  your meeting next door if you desire, and this

          7  meeting will be at least another hour long.  You can

          8  come in at any time and vote.  So we now have a

          9  quorum.  Inez, if you would prefer to go back and

         10  chair the meeting because we have a quorum, this

         11  meeting has officially started, you will have about

         12  an hour to vote.  So you can do that.  All right, we

         13  are going to start.

         14                 First is Councilman DeBlasio's

         15  District which is 37 Carroll Street.  It's a zoning

         16  map amendment to extend an R6 District to facilitate

         17  the development of two four- unit residential

         18  buildings.

         19                 What?  They have to stay to vote?

         20  Inez, just if you could wait one minute so that we

         21  can just the vote.

         22                 L.U. No. 383, Inez Dickens' District,

         23  it's a zoning map amendment to facilitate the

         24  development of an 11- story mixed use building.

         25  It's L.U. No. 383 on 145th Street and Powell Jr.
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          2  Boulevard.  L.U. No. 392 is Councilman Rivera's

          3  District.  It is a UDAAP to facilitate the

          4  construction of 35 residential units under HPD.

          5  L.U. No. 398, HHC lease for the construction of

          6  housing for adults with mental illness, and last we

          7  have the hearing today on a resolution to oppose a

          8  bill that establishes a new State- wide cable

          9  television franchise scheme eliminating basically

         10  the City's authority.  I'll will talk more about

         11  that when the hearing begins. You should all know

         12  that Councilman Lew Fidler may or may not be here.

         13  It is his resolution.  We will keep this hearing

         14  open for two weeks, and do another hearing in two

         15  weeks, but we wanted to make sure that everybody got

         16  to be heard today as well, since the meeting was

         17  noticed.  We will certainly give Lew the transcripts

         18  to make sure that he is aware of everyone that is in

         19  this room today.

         20                 I'm going to call the roll, since a

         21  lot of people are in two meetings at once, and then

         22  we will do the cable franchise hearing.  I also

         23  would like to acknowledge for the first time Vinny

         24  Ignizio, new Council Member from Staten Island.

         25  Welcome to the Land Use Committee.  We're upzoning
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          2  all of Staten Island, right?  Call the roll, please.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Katz

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I vote aye on all.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Dickens

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Aye on all.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you, Council

          8  Member Dickens, by the way for allowing the Members

          9  to come in and vote from your Committee.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Avella

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Aye.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Barron

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Aye.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Jackson

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Martinez

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Aye on all.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Vann

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Aye.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Palma

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Aye.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Arroyo
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Aye.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Garodnick

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Aye.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Mendez

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Ignizio

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO: Aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Felder

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: I have a vote of 14 at

         12  the affirmative, zero in the negative, no

         13  abstentions.  All items have been adopted.  Members

         14  please sign the Committee Reports.  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We will keep the

         16  roll open for the length of the next hearing because

         17  we will be here.  All right?  I thank you, and we

         18  are now going to start the hearing on the  --

         19  Anything else?  Checking the Council.  We are

         20  starting the hearing on the resolution to oppose a

         21  bill that establishes a new State wide cable

         22  television franchise.  This Committee worked

         23  extremely hard to make sure that the authorizing

         24  resolutions that we just passed a few months ago had

         25  provided things that the City of New York that we
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          2  knew the City of New York needed in extending and

          3  renewing, and hopefully having new competition when

          4  it comes to cable franchises in the City of New

          5  York.  I believe that work would go backwards if the

          6  State took the authority.  The City has novel

          7  issues.  It has people that know the City better

          8  than anyone else.  We understand the history of the

          9  cable franchises.  We understand the history of the

         10  authorizing resolutions, and so we are now hearing a

         11  resolution opposing the State taking over this

         12  authority.

         13                 You should all know the Assemblyman

         14  Brodsky and I spoke last night.  He will be coming

         15  today at 11 o'clock to testify, and out of

         16  professional courtesy, I will make time for him to

         17  testify when he gets here.

         18                 We are going to have a three- minute

         19  clock, and since the cable guys went first last

         20  time, we're going to have the PEG's go first this

         21  time.  Okay, we're going to call up in groups,

         22  Clifford Jacobs, Queens Public Television.  Just so

         23  you know though, it switches next hearing.  Greg

         24  Sutton, Brooklyn Info Culture; Michael from

         25  Bronxnet; Dan Coughlin, MNN.
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          2                 And for the Council Members, just so

          3  you know, I announced it before.  Lew Fidler was not

          4  feeling well, as you know, the last few weeks.  He

          5  knows the hearing is going on.  We're going to have

          6  another hearing in two weeks so that he can be here

          7  as well, but this testimony will be given to him as

          8  transcripts.

          9                 Council Member Jackson, we just did a

         10  roll call. How do you vote on the agenda?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Aye on all.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

         13  Seabrook, how do you vote on the agenda from the

         14  Committees that were passed up from the Sub-

         15  committees?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Aye on all.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very

         18  much.  Council Member Rivera.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Thank you very

         20  much, Madam Chair.  I vote aye.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you, and it's

         22  good to see you guys again.  Thank you for being

         23  here once again.  We did the feds a few months ago I

         24  guess it is now.  We are now on the State

         25  legislation, and I look forward to hearing your
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          2  testimony.

          3                 MR. SUTTON: Thank you very much.

          4  Good morning.  I'm Greg Sutton, Executive Producer

          5   --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: May I introduce you

          7  to the Council Members that are here?  Council

          8  Member Martinez, Council Member Seabrook, Council

          9  Member DeBlasio, Council Member Barron, Council

         10  Member Annabel Palma, Council Member Ignizio,

         11  Council Member Rivera, Council Member Arroyo,

         12  Council Member Comrie, Council Member Seabrook wants

         13  to be introduced twice.  Council Member Vann,

         14  Council Member Jackson, Council Member Mendez and

         15  Council Member Sears.  Thank you gentlemen.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: : Madam

         17  Chair, quick point of order.  What exactly are we

         18  doing?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: This is a

         20  resolution to be given to the State opposing the

         21  State taking over authority of the cable franchises

         22  in the City of New York.  They would like to take

         23  the authority from the whole State.  It will be

         24  interesting to hear Assembly Member Brodsky's

         25  testimony because he is the one carrying the bill on
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          2  the State level, but that is why we are here today.

          3  Lew's resolution opposes the State doing this.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: And we'll be

          5  voting on that resolution?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We will not be

          7  voting on this today.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Okay.  Thank

          9  you.

         10                 MR. SUTTON: Thank you.  In the

         11  interest of time, I want to let you that I will be

         12  presenting a joint testimony for all of my

         13  colleagues today.  Good morning.  I am Greg Sutton,

         14  Executive Producer of Brooklyn Information and

         15  Culture's BCAT Program, and I here today with, in

         16  the audience, the Executive Director  --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Can we have some

         18  order in here? These guys  --  He is actually

         19  combining his testimony for everyone.  He should get

         20  extra special care there.

         21                 MR. SUTTON: Right, 12 minutes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: No.

         23                 MR. SUTTON: I'm here today with

         24  Executive Director of Brooklyn Information and

         25  Culture, Leslie Shultz in the audience. As well,
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          2  joining me at the table is Executive Director of

          3  Bronxnet, Michael Knobbe, Dan Coughlin, Executive

          4  Director of Manhattan Neighborhood Network and

          5  Clifford Jacobs, Deputy Executive Director of Queens

          6  Public Television.  Thank you for the opportunity to

          7  speak to you about public access television, and our

          8  support for local franchising.

          9                 It was almost a year ago when we were

         10  before you to support Resolution 136 by which the

         11  Council urged our Congressional delegation to oppose

         12  national cable television franchising.  Having

         13  failed to achieve national franchising because of

         14  opposition from many local governments, the

         15  telephone industry took their case to the FCC and

         16  state legislatures.  So, once again, we come to you

         17  to ask you to take a stand in favor of local control

         18  of cable television franchising.

         19                 We understand and support the need

         20  for competition among telecommunications companies

         21  and we are in no way in favor of a monopoly by the

         22  incumbent cable tv providers.  We also want to state

         23  for the record that we appreciate the willingness of

         24  Assemblyman Richard Brodsky and his staff to listen

         25  to our concerns, and we appreciate that public
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          2  access is acknowledged in the proposed State

          3  legislation as an important and necessary part of

          4  the cable television environment in New York State.

          5  In fact, since this resolution was originally

          6  introduced at the end of last year, there has been

          7  significant movement on many issues that should be

          8  reflected in some textual changes to this

          9  resolution. For example, there are now build- out

         10  and public access provisions that are now much

         11  improved.  We can discuss this with the Committee

         12  staff.

         13                 However, we feel that local

         14  franchising that includes the Council, Mayor,

         15  Comptroller and Borough Presidents is the best way

         16  to negotiate outcomes that reflect our communities'

         17  needs and interests.  The Legislature's attempt to

         18  pass a bill that creates a State- wide one- size-

         19  fits- all system of video franchising could

         20  eliminate New York City's long- standing input into

         21  these franchises.

         22                 Once again, by way of background, let

         23  me tell you about what the various public access

         24  organizations have been able to accomplish via the

         25  local franchise agreements the City has historically
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          2  been able to negotiate.

          3                 In terms of sheer numbers, we have

          4  trained, at no charge, over 30,000 residents in the

          5  use of media equipment during the term of the

          6  current franchises.  Many of those people not only

          7  produce great local programming for their

          8  neighborhoods and communities, some have actually

          9  used this training to pursue careers in the media

         10  industry.  We program over 2,000 hours a week over

         11  our channels.  Our program producers include

         12  legislators and Council Members, Borough Presidents

         13  and District Attorneys, journalists, churches,

         14  artists, musicians, not- for- profit organizations,

         15  youth groups, entrepreneurs  --  in short, as

         16  diverse a group as reflects our community.  We

         17  provide shows on health, law spirituality,

         18  education, culture and local sports.  We air news,

         19  talk shows, debates and documentaries, and we air

         20  them in whatever language our producers bring us.

         21  We provide meaningful media access to the community

         22  and facilitate and develop television created with

         23  our neighborhoods and their diverse populations in

         24  mind.  We ensure that the facilities owner does not

         25  solely control the programming content.
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          2                 State franchising legislation puts at

          3  risk our ability to maintain this wonderful platform

          4  called public access. We believe that local

          5  franchise negotiations continue to be the best way

          6  to ensure that public, educational and governmental

          7  channels receive adequate bandwidth, upgraded

          8  technology and are generally treated like a

          9  traditional cable channel and not a second class

         10  channel.  This means maintaining stable channel

         11  locations, access to program guides and menus and

         12  other promotional support from the cable operator.

         13  These negotiations also ensure that many of the

         14  costly obligations of interconnection and signal

         15  accessibility are on the service provider and not

         16  the public access channel, which is least able to

         17  bear them.

         18                 Also, local franchising also means

         19  that enforcement of those contractual obligations

         20  and consumer protection standards are handled

         21  locally and not in Albany or Washington.  Under

         22  State wide franchising, local consumers instead of

         23  dialing 311, or calling the cable bureau at DoITT,

         24  will have to take their complaints to the Public

         25  Service Commission in Albany.
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          2                 Local franchising also gives us the

          3  ability to negotiate and obtain the capital and

          4  operating funds from video service providers that is

          5  needed for the public to make and transmit public

          6  access television.  Taking decision- making

          7  authority about those funds away from the local

          8  governments is a pre- emption of local authority.

          9  Worse yet, it could significantly reduce our

         10  operating and capital support, causing us to

         11  severely limit rather than expand our services to

         12  the community.

         13                 The telephone companies might argue

         14  that they need State- wide legislation so they can

         15  compete with the cable companies without having to

         16  negotiate with each franchising authority. However,

         17  the record does not support this pre- emption of you

         18  and your colleagues in New York City government as

         19  Verizon has already received over 30 franchises in

         20  New York State.

         21                 Each local government should be

         22  permitted to negotiate and operate its local

         23  franchise agreements according to the varied needs

         24  of its community.  Those needs, and the work that we

         25  each do to facilitate the cablecasting of the local
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          2  voice and perspective, of course, varies from

          3  community to community.  A one size- fits- all

          4  version of State- wide video franchising is not in

          5  the best interest of New York City.  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I'm making the

          7  assumption that you've read the bill pretty

          8  carefully on PEG channels.  Right?  Is anybody very

          9  familiar with the  --  Well the State bill  --  I

         10  spoke to Assemblyman Brodsky yesterday a few times,

         11  and he says the bill has been amended I guess, and

         12  he's going to come and testify. My question to you

         13  is I see here that at least in the bill that I have

         14  that PEG's would have to go to the State for  --

         15  How would it work?  If they took the authority away

         16   --  It says here that the municipalities would

         17  still have some authority.  The problem I have is I

         18  don't see how it would actually work.  I mean what

         19  if the PEG's wanted, or the municipality wanted some

         20  stations, the State didn't it to them?  Do you know

         21  the process, or I can ask Richard, but I'm asking

         22  whether you know?

         23                 MR. SUTTON: Right.  There's a lot of

         24  the bill that has been amended to reflect interests,

         25  and we really do appreciate that.  The actual
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          2  mechanism by which all of this work is still

          3  something that is not  --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I guess that's part

          5  of the problem is we don't know.

          6                 MR. SUTTON: Right.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: At least when it's

          8  a local authority, and I think that with PEG's I

          9  mean we worked so hard to get PEG's as part of the

         10  authorizing resolution before it even got out into

         11  the RFP.  The worry is that if it's on the State

         12  level, every municipality has a different need, and

         13  the local elected officials would be the one that

         14  would know that need better. Richard, the

         15  Assemblyman, has he changed it, as far as you know,

         16  regarding PEG's?

         17                 MR. SUTTON: He has amended the bill

         18  to include language on net neutrality, which is

         19  something that is important to us.  He has amended

         20  to bill, as far as I know, as far as the

         21  contributions of funding, and there are other

         22  amendments that he has listened to our voices and

         23  has included in those.  Though, for us, it really is

         24  about trying to keep this franchise local because we

         25  feel that the people in this room know best how to
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          2  operate this machine, but he has been responsive to

          3  taking these considerations.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Right.  No, I

          5  understand that, and he'll understand that you know

          6  that you guys have said that he's responsive and

          7  that the process is working.  It's just I guess that

          8  there is one thing to be said when a state has

          9  control and gives us permission to do something as

         10  opposed to us just having the authority to do it.

         11  There is a big difference, and I think that would

         12  benefit the public access stations immensely.

         13                 My colleagues have questions?  Any

         14  questions for the public access stations?  No.

         15  Okay, great.  Thank you very much for your time and

         16  we appreciate it.

         17                 MR. SUTTON: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member Liu,

         19  we voted on an agenda that was sent up from the Sub-

         20  committees of the Land Use Committee.  How do you

         21  vote?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you, Madam

         23  Chairperson. I request unanimous consent to vote yes

         24  on all matters.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Yes.  Thank you
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          2  very much.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I didn't think this

          5  was going to start until 11, so people are still

          6  coming in.  Mariela Rosario from Manhattan

          7  Neighborhood Network, Jonathan Piel from Manhattan

          8  Neighborhood Network and Michael Eisenmenger from

          9  saveaccess.org. Please state your names for the

         10  record, and you can do it left to right, or right to

         11  left.

         12                 MS. ROSARIO: My name is Mariela

         13  Rosario.  I'm the Outreach Coordinator for the MNN

         14  Youth Channel.  The Youth Channel is a division of

         15  Manhattan Neighborhood Network working with young

         16  people under the age of 25.  We provide an

         17  alternative to mass media, equal access to all young

         18  people regardless of ethnicity, gender, religion,

         19  sexual orientation or social status.  The City's

         20  involvement in the process of local franchise is

         21  crucial for us. Our ability to be recognized as a

         22  media outlet has been due in large part to the City

         23  Council and local franchise.  We would like to thank

         24  the City Council for its unwavering support of the

         25  local franchising process.
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          2                 The Youth Channel has trained

          3  hundreds of young people throughout the Metropolitan

          4  area in media literacy and production since its

          5  inception in March of 2000.  By collaborating with

          6  other youth- based organizations, public schools and

          7  cultural institutions, we have become a hub for

          8  youth produced media and a national leader in

          9  education with regards to media ownership, messaging

         10  and production.  Our programming centers on

         11  important and timely social issues and has received

         12  local and national recognition.  Youth Channel

         13  prepares the next generation of New Yorkers to be

         14  media producers and analysts, not just passive

         15  consumers.

         16                 There has been much discussion about

         17  creating media opportunities for disenfranchised

         18  communities and we cannot forget about our youth.  A

         19  greater commitment needs to be made so that public

         20  schools gain and are able to sustain broadband

         21  capabilities and equipment that propel students into

         22  the digital and information age.  The media provides

         23  a platform for debate and exchange, but recent

         24  history has demonstrated a steady decrease in public

         25  access to airways.  The media needs of the youth in
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          2  this City are growing and will only continue to do

          3  so.  Broadcasters have an obligation to provide a

          4  space where everyone can have input into our public

          5  discourse, and we believe that the City Council's

          6  input is key in ensuring that this happens.  Thank

          7  you for your time.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: What is the average

          9  age of your folks?

         10                 MS. ROSARIO: Middle and high school,

         11  but we train as young as 3rd graders, so 8 years old

         12  to about 25.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

         14                 MR. EISENMENGER: Hi.  My name is

         15  Michael Eisenmenger.  I'm here today representing

         16  saveaccess.org.  We're a national coalition that

         17  formed last year to preserve PEG in the face of the

         18  federal and state legislation that's been going on.

         19  We organized against the legislation in the House

         20  last year, the Barton Coat bill, and later against

         21  the Senate version, Senator Stevens ATOR bill.

         22  Today the biggest threat we face is state

         23  franchising legislation.  Since January, new bills

         24  have been introduced in 11 states, as I'm sure

         25  you're aware, including New York.  Nearly all of
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          2  these bills are driven by telephone company

          3  interests, primarily those of AT&T and Verizon, and

          4  in some cases Quest.  I want to commend the

          5  Committee for its past work and present efforts to

          6  preserve and improve local franchising and PEG

          7  services in New York City.  We support this

          8  resolution to protect local franchising and we hope

          9  it receives the full attention of the Council.  You

         10  probably know the city of Chicago, along with some

         11  other Illinois cities, passed similar resolutions

         12  this month in response to the state franchise threat

         13  that they are facing there with AT&T.  These

         14  resolutions are really important indicators. They

         15  help re- assert the main public interest issues that

         16  we support, including strong build- out provisions

         17  that help prevent red- lining, strong PEG

         18  protection, net neutrality and the preservation of

         19  home rule and local control of right- of- way.  I'm

         20  sure you also know Members of the Committee how

         21  terrible the FCC ruling was that was issued in

         22  December.  The FCC order was made public earlier

         23  this month, and it was just released into the

         24  federal registry yesterday.  On the national level,

         25  the Alliance for Community Media along with the
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          2  National League of Cities are now preparing a legal

          3  response to this.  I hope the City of New York also

          4  joins in challenging the short- sighted action on

          5  the part of the FCC.  The FCC's intervention to

          6  create a national franchise needs to be turned back,

          7  and we hope this is a last attempt we have to face

          8  of this sort at the federal level.

          9                 In terms of local franchising, I do

         10  have two however's.  One pertains to New York State.

         11    While we seek to preserve it, we also need to

         12  recognize that all the cities in New York State are

         13  served equally by local franchising.  We have a lot

         14  of cities that have few or no PEG channels.  Many

         15  are receiving less than a five percent.  That's

         16  pretty much a baseline of the gross revenue.  Some

         17  of the cities that do have channels are served well.

         18    It's very difficult and bureaucratic for people to

         19  bring in programming.  The facilities aren't nearby

         20  to their communities. They sometimes have to travel

         21  a great distance.  You know there's a lot of reasons

         22  for this.  Sometimes the fault lies with the cities

         23  themselves in not asserting their rights to home

         24  rule and control over the franchise, but often it's

         25  the Public Service Commission of New York State that
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          2  doesn't help that in some cases sides with business

          3  interests instead of the public interests.  So we

          4  need to work in Albany to improve that so that the

          5  entire State benefits from local franchising.

          6                 My second however, state franchising

          7  has been equally terrible around the country.  At

          8  some point, it may become inevitable, and I hope the

          9  Council prepares for a moment when that may occur in

         10  New York State.  In California, you should look

         11  specifically at the legislation that went through

         12  that preserved a lot of elements of home rule and

         13  local franchising, and see how that may at some

         14  point be a part of a state franchise to preserve

         15  local control.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Would you say the

         17  public access station's success, and the localities

         18  interest in them, is relative to the size of the

         19  cities?

         20                 MR. EISENMENGER: It varies around the

         21  country.  In New York State, it tends to be the

         22  larger urban areas that have the more vibrant access

         23  centers.  It's not entirely the case, but for the

         24  most part.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So I guess
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          2  technically you could pass a law that said under a

          3  million people.

          4                 MR. EISENMENGER: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: How are we doing in

          6  New York City?

          7                 MR. EISENMENGER: In New York City,

          8  you know this is one of the most vibrant access

          9  communities in the country.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Just making sure.

         11  Since you seem to know the rest of the State, you

         12  ought to know that.

         13                 MR. EISENMENGER: No.  This is a great

         14  place to be.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 MR. PIEL: Good morning.  My name is

         18  Jonathan Piel. Thank you, Chairperson Katz, for this

         19  opportunity to share with you our thoughts about how

         20  important it is that the City of New York continue

         21  to have the power to negotiate with the

         22  telecommunications industry the franchise fees that

         23  support public access television.

         24                 Madelaine, my wife, and I are public

         25  members of Community Board 8 Manhattan's
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          2  Communications Committee.  One of our main

          3  responsibilities is to produce CB 8 Speaks,

          4  Community Board 8 Manhattan's monthly cablecast.

          5                 CB 8 Speaks informs citizens about

          6  local issues and shows them how they can use CB 8

          7  Manhattan, and other Community Boards, to protect

          8  their interests, making our City a better place to

          9  live.

         10                 As part of this responsibility, we

         11  bring our viewers the faces and the voices behind

         12  the news stories.  Members of this Council,

         13  Manhattan Borough Presidents, past and present, as

         14  well as our representatives in the State Assembly

         15  and Senate, regularly appear on CB 8 Speaks.

         16                 In all of this coverage, Community

         17  Board 8 Manhattan emerges as a force for

         18  reconciliation, a creator and honest broker of

         19  solutions to the City's problems.

         20                 If the power to make the arrangements

         21  that bring public access television to the five

         22  boroughs migrates to Albany, the danger looms that

         23  the important array of programs that MNN and its

         24  sister networks carry could go dark.  Surely, as

         25  good citizens of this City, the telecommunications
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          2  companies in return for access to this highly

          3  lucrative market should want MNN and the public

          4  access stations that serve the other boroughs to

          5  receive the kind of support they need to do their

          6  essential work.  Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you all very

          8  much for being here and for your time.  I appreciate

          9  it.

         10                 MR. PIEL: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Anybody have any

         12  questions?  I apologize.  Thank you.  Oh wait

         13  Council  --  I'm sorry.  We're just teasing you.

         14  Council Member Sears.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I have a

         16  question.  It's really directed more  --  Because I

         17  have to leave and then I'll come back because I

         18  really want to be here for the whole meeting, but is

         19  the intent of this bill that is being proposed --

         20  because under the guidance of this Chair, this

         21  Committee has overwhelmingly made enormous efforts

         22  to be fair, to be knowledgeable, to be discreet and

         23  to have respect for all the parties that have come

         24  before us, and the Members of this Committee have

         25  worked very diligently in supporting our Chair and
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          2  the work that comes before the Committee; so my

          3  question is, is this proposed law in Albany because

          4  it is conceived that New York City is not behaving

          5  in the way that it does?  Or is it something that

          6  they're choosing to take over to diminish more of

          7  the power of the City of New York? Because one, I

          8  think it's outrageous they're doing it only because

          9  of the work that this Committee has done.  Secondly,

         10  that this City is not  --  Now I know some cities in

         11  New York State, and if they are having problems with

         12  public access it seems to me it's up to the local

         13  officials to see that something happens with that.

         14  I don't think that you take all counties, and

         15  particularly New York City, and look at it in a

         16  punitive measure because there may be inequities in

         17  other parts of the State.  So I really, Madam Chair,

         18  I think we need to do everything we can to really

         19  stop this.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: If I could ask you

         21  a favor, the Assemblyman who is carrying the bill is

         22  going to be here now in five minutes.  Can you just

         23  repeat all of that again?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I think it's
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          2  important.  I mean like I said, him and I had the

          3  conversation.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I don't

          5  understand.  It's very ambiguous to me.  To me it

          6  seems, being very blunt, it's a tug- of war as to

          7  power between the City of New York and the State

          8  Legislature, and you know what?  That's

          9  unacceptable.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Right, and during

         11  our conversations yesterday basically what came out

         12  was well we're still leaving this, or we're letting

         13  you do this or that, and my point is you're still

         14  taking the authority away.  So you have the power to

         15  withdraw all the offers you're making or put them

         16  back on the table, and that's not what local

         17  authority is about.  So, if you can, repeat that.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I will be happy

         19  to do that. I'll just go downstairs and see if the

         20  meeting can be postponed for twenty minutes or so

         21  and I will be back.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: That would be

         23  great.  I appreciate that.  Thank you and thank you

         24  lady and gentlemen.

         25                 There's only four people left.  So
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          2  I'm going to ask them all to come up.  I don't know

          3  where everybody stands to be honest about it.

          4  Harriet Novet from Time Warner, Lee Schroeder from

          5  Cablevision, Pete from CWA and Felicia Feinerman

          6  from Borough President Stringer's Office.  All

          7  right.  Harriet you want to start?

          8                 MS. NOVET: My name is Harriet Novet,

          9  and I'm Vice President of Public Affairs at Time

         10  Warner Cable.  Many of you know me, and I have been

         11  associated with the company for over two decades.

         12  Thank you, Madam Chairman, for the opportunity to

         13  address you and share our views on this resolution.

         14                 We agree with the Council's position

         15  that this proposed law changing the cable

         16  franchising process in New York is not necessary.

         17  Why?  Because as your Resolution notes, current

         18  regulations allow for quick entry into the cable

         19  business by any new entrant making this proposed

         20  legislation superfluous.  In fact, the Cable

         21  Television Association in Albany which represents

         22  all of the cable companies that provide cable

         23  service, internet and telephone throughout the State

         24  of New York.  They represent towns, villages and

         25  cities as far apart as Buffalo and Montauk and
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          2  throughout the City and that association similarly

          3  opposes this State legislation.

          4                 In summary, we support and welcome

          5  your resolution to that effect from the Council and

          6  thank you for the opportunity to express your views,

          7  and may I add that I am also putting into the record

          8  with the Sergeant- at- Arms the testimony of Lance

          9  Van Arsdale of Local 3 IBEW which was submitted

         10  yesterday to Assembly Member Brodsky at his

         11  committee meeting in Albany.  So I've also entered

         12  his comments into the record.  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.  Please.

         14                 Good morning, Chairperson Katz and

         15  Members of the City Council Land Use Committee.  I

         16  am Lee Schroeder, Vice President of Government and

         17  Regulatory Strategy for Cablevision, and with me is

         18  Kevin McGrath, attorney for Cablevision.

         19                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         20  address the Committee in support of the Resolution

         21  460- A, that opposes New York State legislation

         22  preempting local franchising for cable.

         23                 In May of 2006, this Committee and

         24  the full Council wisely adopted a resolution

         25  opposing federal preemption of local franchising for
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          2  cable in recognition that control of the City's

          3  rights of way is a local prerogative.  The

          4  battleground has now shifted from Congress to the

          5  state legislatures, where state legislation to

          6  preempt local franchising is pending.  Consistent

          7  with the Council's action on federal preemption, a

          8  resolution of this Committee and Council against

          9  state preemptive legislation is important to

         10  preserving local control.

         11                 Local franchising remains a viable

         12  and beneficial process that is not an impediment to

         13  fair competition.  Cablevision has worked under the

         14  local franchising system with the City since winning

         15  its first franchises in 1983 to serve the Bronx and

         16  two thirds of Brooklyn.  We have renewed our

         17  franchise with the City, rebuilt the entire system,

         18  and now offer the most advanced digital cable

         19  television and broadband services to all of the 1.2

         20  million home in our New York City service area.

         21                 The local franchise process enable

         22  municipalities like New York City to negotiate

         23  provisions to meet the specific needs of a

         24  community.

         25                 Under the State- wide franchise bill
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          2  being considered in Albany, franchises would be

          3  granted by the Public Service Commission, pursuant

          4  to a state template, with no room for the type of

          5  local input reflected in the franchises the City

          6  negotiated with the current operators.

          7                 We support Resolution 40- A and urge

          8  this Committee and the Council to adopt it.  Thank

          9  you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 MS. FEINERMAN: Good morning.  My name

         13  is Felicia Feinerman, Director of Intergovernmental

         14  Affairs for Manhattan Borough President, Scott

         15  Stringer.  Thank you Chairwoman Katz and Members of

         16  the Committee for the opportunity to testify in

         17  strong support of Resolution 460- A which opposes

         18  State legislation intended to strip municipalities

         19  of the ability to negotiate franchise agreements for

         20  cable service.

         21                 This is a clear case of state

         22  government interceding into a local system which

         23  functions well and best identifies and serves the

         24  needs of local residents.  The State bill demands a

         25  one size-fits-all approach that is not appropriate
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          2  for a system of such localized impact.  A local

          3  franchising authority ensures the expertise and

          4  ability to assess the many facets of providing cable

          5  and internet service in localities.  For example, a

          6  franchising system must be able to evaluate the

          7  impact of installing cable  -- I'm sorry.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: That's okay.

          9  You're doing good, well too.

         10                 MS. FEINERMAN: Not enough caffeine.

         11   --  Installing cable access on specific City

         12  streets and balance a variety of local uses of such

         13  streets.  A franchising system must also regulate

         14  the maintenance and upgrade of facilities with an

         15  understanding of and in accordance with our local

         16  laws.  Local control over franchising best achieves

         17  these goals.

         18                 Local cable franchising also allows

         19  for greater local input and response on specific

         20  needs such as service outages and other problems.  A

         21  State- wide process involving the Public Service

         22  Commission would be strapped to determine the

         23  individual local cable or internet problems across

         24  our state.  Local franchises thus provide a means

         25  for a local government to appropriately oversee the
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          2  operations of cable service providers in our public

          3  interest and ensure compliance with local laws.

          4                 Finally, in New York City, Public,

          5  Educational and Governmental, PEG, access provides

          6  thousands of hours of local programming each week to

          7  residents, such as City Council meetings and

          8  hearings, community and neighborhood events, forums,

          9  foreign language programming, health care

         10  information and countless other things.  Public

         11  access channels in Manhattan allow our residents to

         12  exercise their First Amendment Rights and to create

         13  opportunities for non- commercial, community- based

         14  communication, education and artistic expression on

         15  an open and equitable basis.

         16                 Local franchises allow each community

         17  to have a voice in how local cable systems work, and

         18  should be implemented. I support Resolution 460 and

         19  look forward to working with all of you to keep

         20  cable and internet franchising under our local

         21  control. Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Do you have a copy

         23  of your testimony?

         24                 MS. FEINERMAN: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: You're actually one
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          2  of the first folks to bring up the local streets

          3  issue, that we are responsible for our local streets

          4  and that's where the cable is laid.

          5                 MS. FEINERMAN: The Brodsky

          6  legislation makes some accommodations for local

          7  throughways, but the City can obviously do a better

          8  job.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.  Sir.

         10                 MR. SIKORA: Thanks, Councilman.  My

         11  name is Peter Sikora, and I am with CWA District 1.

         12  We represent about 70,000 unionized employees around

         13  the state, 25,000 at Verizon, 12,000 Verizon members

         14  in New York City.  My boss, Bob Master regrets he

         15  couldn't be here today, but he sent me in his place.

         16                 This is an extremely complex area

         17  that  --  telecommunications policy, very, very

         18  complicated, very, very difficult stuff.  Over the

         19  last 12 years from the Pataki Administration, we've

         20  seen no real consideration for any policies other

         21  than let the marketplace and pure competition and

         22  the free market somehow magically take care of

         23  everything.  That hasn't worked for telephone

         24  service quality and it hasn't worked to create cable

         25  competition in the state.  CWA believes that we need
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          2  a comprehensive telecommunications policy and that

          3  policy is reflected in A3980 which the Assemblyman

          4  has introduced and will presumably be defending in a

          5  little bit, and I'll defer to him on the provisions

          6  of it.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: He's walking in.

          8                 MR. SIKORA: He's coming in.

          9  Wonderful.  Our platform is sort of three part.

         10  First of all, we want to make sure that telephone

         11  service quality is preserved.  Right now, on land

         12  lines there is good preservations for service

         13  quality, but when cable companies offer telephone

         14  service, they don't have those kinds of service

         15  quality protection for consumers, particularly low-

         16  income consumers.  That's one, telephone service

         17  quality.

         18                 The second thing is we want to make

         19  sure that there is competition in the cable market

         20  so that our employer and other potential competitors

         21  can compete with the cable companies, with Time

         22  Warner, with Cablevision, to actually lower prices

         23  for everybody on cable rates.

         24                 The third thing that we want is a

         25  build- out of universal broadband all over the
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          2  State.  It's a very, very important issue.

          3  Telephones were created as a universal good, as a

          4  regulated universal good, but now we have a private

          5  marketplace that is supposed to deliver the internet

          6  to everyone, but won't at the high speeds that we

          7  need for everyone in New York State.  So we favor a

          8  build- out of universal broadband all over the

          9  State.  Those provisions are in 3980.  We think it's

         10  a very, very good piece of legislation.  We're eager

         11  to hear your concerns on this issue, but would

         12  recommend that you do not vote out this resolution

         13  right now because this is a very, very complex area

         14  that needs very, very careful examination.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So CWA's position

         16  is that the City did well in their RFP?  I mean

         17  because the CWA I thought was for the authorizing

         18  resolution that we passed a few months ago.

         19                 MR. SIKORA: That's correct.  We want

         20  to see a build out of Verizon's FIOS service

         21  everywhere that's possible.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: State- wide.

         23                 MR. SIKORA: State- wide.  Right.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So basically if

         25  every locality did what New York City did, that
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          2  would be okay.  You basically just want what we did

          3  State- wide and you think that if it's in the State

          4  level, you might get it consistent throughout the

          5  State.

          6                 MR. SIKORA: It's a little bit more

          7  complex than that because on the State level there's

          8  a big difference between  --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: By the way, we're

         10  okay at complex.

         11                 MR. SIKORA: I know.  I know.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So tell us what you

         13  mean.

         14                 MR. SIKORA: Well New York City is its

         15  own animal. Obviously, it's got a huge population,

         16  but in Upstate and on Long Island things are very,

         17  very different.  So a State- wide approach doesn't

         18  necessarily not make sense as long as New York City

         19  public access, cable, things like that are

         20  protected.  We need to make sure that there's a

         21  build- out all over the State, that nobody is left

         22  behind and that includes New York City.  But, again,

         23  it's difficult because New York City is so different

         24  from everywhere else.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Right, but we've
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          2  already done it here basically.  I mean we provided

          3  the authorizing resolution for the City to issue the

          4  RFP so that you can do FIOS throughout the City, and

          5  we know because of the testimony that happened that

          6  they'll probably do an overlay of the City.  I mean

          7  we don't know that, but that's what they testified

          8  to.  So in the City, you guys are okay.  It's just

          9  that you'd like to see that State- wide.  Is that

         10  the idea?  And you believe that this is the

         11  mechanism by which you can there.

         12                 MR. SIKORA: Well on a State- wide

         13  video franchise, that's correct.  That is as long as

         14  there is conditions in it that protect consumers and

         15  make sure that there is a build- out and protect

         16  public access cable, all of those things.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And is that part of

         18  the legislation now as far as you know, that there

         19  is those protection?

         20                 MR. SIKORA: A3980 is something of a

         21  work in progress, but it is a comprehensive reform

         22  of telecommunications policy that does protect

         23  public access cable, that does protect consumers,

         24  that does have a strong build- out, that does have

         25  telephone service quality, a whole set of very
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          2  important issues.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And will

          4  automatically allow the competition that we allow in

          5  the City?

          6                 MR. SIKORA: Well it doesn't

          7  automatically do anything.  It allows companies like

          8  Verizon, other providers, to apply for a State- wide

          9  video franchise that they can then go head to- head

         10  on competition lowering rates for consumers.  It's

         11  not a panacea for the very, very difficult situation

         12  that we have here of essentially a deregulated

         13  marketplace in something that really is a utility.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: See how well you

         15  did.  It took about 14 or 15 people testifying just

         16  to counter what you said. Good job.  Thank you very

         17  much.  Thank you everybody, and any questions.  I

         18  apologize.  No.  Assemblyman Brodsky just walked in.

         19  I want to apologize to him.  I didn't have as much

         20  faith in all of us.  I told him the Committee was

         21  starting at 11, and we started early, and so

         22  Assemblyman Brodsky, if you could take a seat.

         23  Assemblyman Brodsky is the sponsor of the bill.

         24  We're going to let you testify and then I'm going to

         25  let Helen Sears go first.  We do want to hear what
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          2  you have to say.  Just so you know, the context of

          3  which you're talking  --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Excuse me,

          5  Madam Chair.  Do we allow people to throw their

          6  paper down like that on our desk?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We allow

          8  Assemblyman Brodsky to do it.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: We'll allow

         10  him to do that? Oh, yes.  I've heard.  Oh that's a

         11  pretty good comeback.  Your very sharp this morning.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I told you.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: You warned me.

         14    I just thought I'd get in the mix and have

         15  something exciting happen. It's good to see you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Yes, Richard.  This

         17  is City government.  When the light is off, you

         18  actually are on.  So can you turn the light off?

         19  You now are on.  We are hearing as you know a

         20  resolution in opposition to the bill that you are

         21  carrying on the State- wide level.  We've had a lot

         22  of testimony today, not only from PEG's, who by the

         23  way have acknowledged and thank you for being so

         24  open, not only you and your staff to discussion with

         25  them. We've also heard from the cable companies who
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          2  believe about local control.

          3                 You should know where we're coming

          4  from, in one minute or less, which is that we just

          5  spent I would say a good part of six months doing an

          6  authorizing resolution, and negotiating an order to

          7  have competition in the City of New York bringing in

          8  to the conversation a lot of distinct issues and a

          9  lot of distinct responsibilities that Council

         10  Members have in their districts.  So on the heels of

         11  that, we did the opposition to the federal

         12  government taking it over, which I would love to

         13  know what your opinion would be of that, and also

         14  the State now taking it over. Lew Fidler is, as you

         15  know, ill on and off. He's feeling better, but still

         16  on restricted duty.  So we will give him the

         17  transcripts, and we welcome you here in the New York

         18  City Council.

         19                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Thank you, Madam

         20  Chair.  Thank you to each and all the Members of the

         21  Council for their attention to this extraordinarily

         22  important issue.  The context I come to you in is

         23  that I Chair the Committee of Jurisdiction in the

         24  New York State Assembly with respect to

         25  telecommunications.
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          2                 I can safely say that the State of

          3  New York has no telecommunications policy.  In the

          4  face of massive technological and social upheaval in

          5  the telecommunications area, the State of New York

          6  has done nothing.  That is about to change, and we

          7  are about to engage in the lawmaking process so that

          8  the mistakes made by the deregulation of the energy

          9  process, which was all done by administrative and

         10  commission fee are not as troubling as the results

         11  of that process.

         12                 There are two fundamental policy

         13  goals that we bring to this, and that is that the

         14  historic goal of telephone service should be

         15  translated into a goal for telecommunications which

         16  is universal, affordable service.

         17                 Let me give you an example of what

         18  that means. There is much discussion of the digital

         19  divide and a build- out for digital and broadband

         20  capacities.  That implies that the problem for

         21  access to the internet, the broadband, is

         22  essentially one of mechanical build- out.  It's not.

         23    The fundamental problem in access to the internet

         24  and to broadband is social.  There are many

         25  communities in which the wires go down the street
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          2  and the folks in the communities cannot afford the

          3  hardware or the operating costs of the system.  So

          4  that what we are doing in the larger sense of this

          5  bill is addressing these fundamental gaps in our

          6  telecommunications policy.  At the same time, I will

          7  tell you that our legacy system, the copper wired

          8  system that is still so much a part of what we do is

          9  in collapse, and I can share with the Committees if

         10  you wish, Madam Chair, a study of the service

         11  quality elements of this matter, a matter well know

         12  to my predecessor, dear friend and admired

         13  colleague, Councilman Vann.  There are areas of the

         14  City in which their telephone service is in

         15  collapse.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I served with you

         17  too, just for the record.

         18                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Say again.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I served with you

         20  also, just for the record.

         21                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: I referred to

         22  him as my predecessor in that matter.  I am

         23  chastised for a second time, Madam Chair, and I  --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I can't do it as

         25  well as Charles. I do not have the capability.
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          2                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: I was 6'2" when

          3  I walked into this room.  Let me tell you.

          4                 The point being is that the omnibus

          5  Telecommunications Act of 2007 addresses all of

          6  these things.  It addresses the problems of

          7  broadband which is not a cable franchise issue.  It

          8  addresses the collapse of the legacy system and

          9  service quality standards and it addresses issues

         10  through the franchise system, issues of the most

         11  social purpose net neutrality, a concept which we

         12  can wrestle with if you like, and it is opposed by

         13  every telecommunications monopoly that I know of.

         14  It's got to speak well for this that both Verizon

         15  and the cable companies don't like it.

         16                 Now the lobbying process has been an

         17  extraordinarily interesting one.  This may come as a

         18  shock to Members of the Council, but there are

         19  occasions in which the work product of members of

         20  the legislative body is lied about.  Now I tell you

         21  that this bill was lied about.  We're all adults and

         22  we can handle that. We have handled that, and I have

         23  some materials setting the record straight, but I

         24  was delighted to see some of the opponents comments

         25  that this was Verizon's bill.  Well you should have
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          2  been at the hearing yesterday.  At that hearing, we

          3  had, as I said, opposition from monopolies, but

          4  support from groups like Consumers Union and the

          5  national alliance of what are essentially the PEG

          6  and government access and public access folks, and

          7  other community based people for the bill.  Not just

          8  thanking me for being open- minded  --  I appreciate

          9  that  --  but I get a lot of whispered you're doing

         10  great, and a lot of public well we're not so sure

         11  yet. Part of that is the monopoly power of the cable

         12  companies and their sort of buying people instead of

         13  having them wrestle with these fundamental social

         14  policies that are included in this bill.

         15                 Now as to the issues that most

         16  concerned the Committee and the City Council.  With

         17  respect to franchising, this is a State franchise

         18  bill.  I'll come back to that at the end because

         19  that seems to me to be the offense that I understand

         20  that both the Council and representatives of the

         21  City Administration feel about it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I think that's a

         23  good idea.  If you could focus  --  We're not timing

         24  you.  Usually we do, but out of respect, we're not.

         25  If you could focus on why the State should take over
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          2  something that the City of New York seems to be

          3  doing so well at.

          4                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Great.  Let me

          5  do that quickly by saying the bill does not

          6  interfere with your franchise.  So the franchise

          7  that you had negotiated would survive the bill.

          8  It's grandfathered in.  So that's the easiest

          9  answer, but the reason why Verizon opposes the bill,

         10  although they like State- wide franchising bills

         11  elsewhere, is because as a condition for easy entry

         12  into the market, we require them to produce social

         13  good.  They don't like social good.  They like

         14  profit.  They're a corporation.  They're supposed to

         15  be that way.  You can't really criticize them.

         16  That's the nature of the beast, but the two area

         17  that we focus on are net neutrality and build- out

         18  requirements.  We have the toughest

         19  telecommunications redlining provisions anywhere in

         20  the nation in this bill.  We have a requirement for

         21  build- out that is extraordinarily powerful and

         22  important.

         23                 Chairman, nice to see you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Councilman Lew

         25  Fidler has joined us, the sponsor of the resolution.
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          2                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Those two goods,

          3  in addition to everything else which we can talk

          4  about, seem to be to me of overwhelming importance

          5  and I would point out that there is some virtue to

          6  the people of the City of New York of being able to

          7  use their internet and telecommunications system to

          8  speak to people outside the City of New York.  Last

          9  I looked the communications lines actually came up

         10  to the north country up in Westchester and the rest

         11  of the State.  So a system that well our system is

         12  working.  Great.  What do we care about you guys?

         13   --  May not be the correct telecommunications

         14  policy.

         15                 Now with respect to local control,

         16  and then I suspect I should take questions.  This is

         17  a fiction of the highest order.  What are the

         18  matters that constitute your ability to control your

         19  cable system?  Well the ability to protect and

         20  regulate public rights- of- way.  The bill preserves

         21  that.  The City would retain its right to protect

         22  and regulate public rights- of- way without

         23  interference or permission of the State.  The

         24  ability to regulate consumer protection, the City

         25  would retain its consumer protection abilities
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          2  without the approval or interference of the State.

          3  The ability to regulate PEG channels, the City would

          4  continue to have that ability without the permission

          5  or regulation of the State.  The ability to

          6  negotiate franchise fees which you would continue to

          7  have and those are the things except for the formal

          8  process of approval that constitute the powers you

          9  wish to exercise, we don't take them.  Better than

         10  that, we give you more money because in our bill, in

         11  addition to the five percent that you currently

         12  negotiated, is a required two percent additional for

         13  public access.

         14                 Now if there is something

         15  substantively offensive in anything I have raised

         16  with you, we'd like to hear it, and as you've heard,

         17  we're very open to change.  But if this comes down

         18  to an almost ideological view expressed to us

         19  yesterday by the Conference of Mayors is if it's a

         20  power given to a local government, we're not giving

         21  it up, well then I respectfully disagree because in

         22  the end what we're all about is providing service to

         23  an extraordinary, revolutionary technology to all

         24  kinds of people in ways that are affordable and

         25  universal.  If we leave that to the tender mercies
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          2  of the cable companies and the phone companies, our

          3  people will not prosper, grow and learn.

          4                 With that, Madam Chair and Mr. Chair,

          5  let me submit to you copies of the bill, some

          6  clarifying materials, some materials clarifying what

          7  local powers you maintain.  I'll urge you --  Trust

          8  me.  I'm not ready.  I urge you not to approve this

          9  resolution.  One, your concern about cable ought to

         10  be at least balanced by the other portions of the

         11  bill which have recently amended and which I do not

         12  think have been thoroughly considered in your

         13  deliberations.  Two, the things you care about are

         14  preserved. And, three, if we are going to

         15  democratize and make accessible this new technology,

         16  we have to find new ways to think and do.  That's

         17  what we're about.  I welcome your participation and

         18  concern.  I'm extraordinarily encouraged by it.  I

         19  do want to at this point recognize that I did serve

         20  with pleasure with Ms. Katz for a number of years.

         21  I served with Ms. Arroyo's mother who serves with

         22  great distinction.  I know most of you.  I

         23  apologize.  Mr. Rivera's father and sister are

         24  distinguished friends and colleagues.  If I'm

         25  leaving anybody out, I apologize.  I'm also familiar
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          2  with the communities of Brooklyn.  My god, but

          3  that's  --  I grew up in Flatbush.  Who have I not

          4  offended?  Anybody?  All right.  Thank you.  I

          5  mentioned Al long ago.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: You mentioned Al

          7  Vann.  Yes, Al and I and Richard served together,

          8  and Assemblyman Brodsky was the Chair of the

          9  Committee when I served on Environmental

         10  Conservation, and now it's payback.

         11                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: I used to put

         12  you  --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I'm just kidding.

         14  You were a phenomenal chairman.

         15                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: But I do have a few

         17  questions.  I guess my first question would be out

         18  of curiosity.  Did you support the federal takeover

         19  of the franchises in the Unites States?

         20                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: No.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So well being that

         22  I had a good -

         23                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Would you like

         24  my reasons?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I would love your
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          2  reasons for that.

          3                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: The reasons are

          4  they didn't provide any of the goods that this bill

          5  provides.  At the same time these people in

          6  Washington were appealing the net neutrality

          7  provisions.  Net neutrality which is maybe the

          8  single most important part of our bill is the

          9  concept and now the law that says you can't

         10  discriminate on content.  That the phone company

         11  can't say that it will take you 30 seconds to get

         12  onto Mr. Vann's site, but two hours to get on to

         13  your site.  It is a concept supported widely across

         14  the political spectrum.  When you have the NRA, the

         15  Christian Coalition, moveon.org, and every other

         16  left- wing organization close to my heart saying the

         17  same things and the phone company saying no, I think

         18  you'll see what the competing values are.  So, if

         19  there is no other thing that we do that you ought to

         20  be supporting it's making the law, the State

         21  consistent with the principles and concept of net

         22  neutrality.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So it had nothing

         24  to do with not wanting to give up the authority of

         25  the localities, or maybe giving up the idea that the
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          2  State might be able to take it over in the future.

          3                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: It had nothing

          4  to do with that because there are areas in which in

          5  makes more sense for someone else to make a formal

          6  decision.  I would point out to you again, Madam

          7  Chair, that we do not take from you the substance of

          8  the powers you wish to exercise.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Well you take them

         10  and then you give them back.  Right?  I mean you

         11  basically say  --

         12                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: No, we don't

         13  take them.  I don't know.  I'll talk to my lawyers.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Well but that is a

         15  very big distinction as someone who has served in

         16  both bodies now, the State and the City Council.

         17  That is a very large distinction because what the

         18  State seems to be saying is that we'll take over

         19  this responsibility, but we'll still let you do you

         20  know the PEG channels, the public rights- of- way's,

         21  the consumer protection. We'll let you do all that,

         22  but  --

         23                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Respectfully,

         24  your ability to approve franchises is because we

         25  give you the permission.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Right.

          3                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: You have no

          4  inherent authority to issue franchises.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: But if you take is

          6  State- wide on this particular level, you're still

          7  just giving us  --  Right now, we have the local

          8  authority to do our own authorizing resolution

          9  because you give us that authority, but you

         10  basically give it to us and walk away.

         11                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Respectfully, I

         12  think this is an academic distinction, which I'm not

         13  prepared to authoritatively rebut.  I have left out

         14  one element which if I may, Madam Chair, I want to

         15  point out.  Where there are State- wide franchises,

         16  rates fall 28 percent.  That has to be of value for

         17  your constituents especially as one of the barriers

         18  to access to broadband is the cost.  In this

         19  document, you'll see charts showing what's happened

         20  in the state of Texas, and some FCC documentation

         21  showing cable rates plummeting where state- wide

         22  franchises go into effect.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I'm going to turn

         24  this over to my colleagues.  I know a lot of them

         25  want to speak, but I guess before I do that I just
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          2  wanted to throw out one more thing.  You should know

          3  that in the last authorizing resolution that we did

          4  with the City we put a lot of criteria on the build-

          5  out provision.  We made sure that for instance if

          6  Verizon goes into communities it wasn't cost

          7  prohibitive for some of the folks to use the service

          8  from Verizon and so that they could make more money

          9  on the wealthier communities.  We did very carefully

         10  negotiate a build- out community, and we have since

         11  been in discussions with the Administration to make

         12  sure that those policies that we annunciated in our

         13  resolution are being followed to the T.  You and I

         14  maybe should have a discussion, just because we

         15  should, on what we did in that for the future

         16  because there are social policies that can be done

         17  by the City as well.

         18                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: If I have failed

         19  to acknowledge that the City's efforts here have

         20  been largely successful, that's my fault, and I

         21  hereby acknowledge it.  I appreciate your correcting

         22  the record.  There's nothing in this that is a

         23  criticism of the City's behavior.  I would just

         24  point out though that the ability to get on the

         25  internet implies that you can get somewhere else,
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          2  and there actually maybe folks in Syracuse or

          3  Westchester or Buffalo that people would want to

          4  talk to and have universal access to.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.  Now

          6  Councilman Fidler, would you like to make a comment

          7  first before I call on Council Member Sears?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: No, just

          9  briefly I want to thank you for bringing this

         10  resolution to the floor.  I apologize to everyone

         11  for both my tardiness.  I'm sure my colleagues are

         12  all aware of the fact that I've had some health

         13  issues this last week, and haven't been as on top of

         14  the game for this as I would've liked.  Somehow I'm

         15  hearing the Assemblyman say that we haven't broken

         16  it, but he still wants to fix it.  So I'm not really

         17  sure that I'm convinced that this reso is not still

         18  very well placed. If by any chance you understate or

         19  underestimate the paranoia level that City elected

         20  officials have when powers are  --

         21                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: I almost never

         22  do that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:   --   When

         24  powers are taken by the State and then given back to

         25  us, and you say that it's academic.  We can talk
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          2  about revenue sharing for a little bit if you like

          3  as well.  So I don't find that to be an academic

          4  issue.

          5                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: I never

          6  underestimate the paranoia of any public official.

          7  I respect and admire your interest and concern.  I

          8  can simply say that the description of this is a

          9  taking and a re-giving I don't think is legally

         10  accurate. If it is, we'll fix it, but in the end,

         11  the values that are included here seem to me to be

         12  powerful instruments in the interest of your

         13  constituents as well as mine.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And I would

         15  suggest that whatever values you think that we're

         16  missing I think that we should be able to address,

         17  and should address here in the City of New York on a

         18  local level with the powers that have either been

         19  given to us or entrusted to us.  So I thank you for

         20  allowing me to say my two words piece.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

         22  Sears, would you still like to make a comment?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I think so.

         24  Maybe not as lengthy, but rather briefly.  Thank you

         25  for being here this morning.
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          2                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: My pleasure.

          3  Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I support this

          5  resolution, and I'll explain a few reasons why.

          6  This Committee, and as I stated earlier under the

          7  leadership of the Chair, has not done anything

          8  without going into depth, without acquiring a lot of

          9  knowledge about it, with a sensitivity to recognize

         10  all of the various communities in this City of eight

         11  and a half million people.  I consider this to be to

         12  the City of New York a rather punitive measure, and

         13  I'll explain why.  We're the largest city in the

         14  State.  If the other counties are having issues that

         15  you're talking about then I think that those local

         16  representatives should be dealing with those

         17  inequities, and take it to the State legislature.

         18  And I agree with Councilman Fidler that if there is

         19  something that is not right about what we're doing

         20  then we have the ability to correct it.  I think

         21  that relinquishing what we're able to do at this

         22  time when we have demonstrated without doubt the

         23  ability, the perseverance and the stubbornness to

         24  turn out something that is right and fair for all

         25  the boroughs, eight and a half million people, and

                                                            61

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2  where there was and inequity, we really worked to

          3  see that that spot was filled.  So to take this

          4  authority and you're telling us what it does allow

          5  us to do, but you haven't said what we can't do.

          6  What we can't do  --

          7                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Because there

          8  isn't anything.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Well I find

         10  that very hard because we have the ability to do

         11  this right now.  If we have to go back to the State

         12  for approval to do  --

         13                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: You don't.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:   -- What we

         15  want, then maybe you need to clarify some of this

         16  things.

         17                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: May I?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay.

         19                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: First of all,

         20  let me respond to the question of the sincerity and

         21  intelligence and activity of the Committee and the

         22  Members is something I fully acknowledge, but I

         23  would point out that until I believe yesterday this

         24  resolution was on a bill vastly different from this

         25  bill.  So that it is my understanding that the
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          2  Council has had less than 24 hours to review the

          3  provisions of the bill.  Maybe a longer analysis,

          4  more than 24 hours, might yield an open mind about

          5  it, and I urge you to take that position.

          6                 Second of all, an insistence on the

          7  franchise granting as the only the issue to the

          8  people of the City seems to me to be misplaced.

          9  That there are other values that are in this bill

         10   --  I am not aware, for example, that your City

         11  franchise deals with net neutrality.  Now if I'm

         12  right, and that is the case, then there is a

         13  terrible gap in that, and that we can fix that

         14  without interfering with the things that you

         15  practically want to do.  You want to control the

         16  rights- of- way, you got it.  You want to regulate

         17  consumer protection, you got it.  You want to

         18  regulate PEG channels, you got it.  You want to

         19  negotiate a set of fees, plus we give you an extra

         20  two percent for the public access folks. That might

         21  not be enough to overcome an ideological preference

         22  for local control.  Okay, but I urge you to give us

         23  time to talk before 24 hours after amending your

         24  resolution to actually deal with the bill that I've

         25  put in.  We might be able to come to a meeting of
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          2  the minds in ways that protect everybody's

          3  interests.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Well I find the

          5  Chair most reasonable, and certainly would not

          6  disregard what you're talking about.  So that's

          7  something to consider.  Thank you.

          8                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

         10  Comrie.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you,

         12  Madam Chair.  Good afternoon, Assemblyman.  Good to

         13  see you.

         14                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY:  Good afternoon.

         15    Nice to see you.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I appreciate

         17  you coming today to share with us your information.

         18  So are you saying that your bill has been amended in

         19  the last 24 hours?

         20                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: No.  I'm say the

         21  bill has been in print for about three and a half

         22  weeks, and for reasons not known to me, the bill

         23  under consideration until yesterday was not this

         24  bill.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Can you
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          2  explain that a little further?

          3                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: No, I can't.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So you're

          5  saying the bill that we were looking at was a

          6  separate bill and not the bill that you have.

          7                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: That's correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: That you've

          9  worked on and put together.

         10                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: That's correct.

         11  The resolution was amended yesterday.  So it is now

         12  a resolution affecting this 70- page bill, which I

         13  actually have a copy of here.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.  Well I

         15  think the resolution is omnibus and that it would

         16  affect any legislation coming from the State though.

         17    Don't you think?

         18                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: I think it

         19  would.  It would oppose any legislation coming from

         20  the State no matter what was contained in that

         21  legislation.  That's a point of view.  I don't share

         22  it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.  Okay.

         24  What would be the difference that would make us

         25  happy as far as the City which has already been a
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          2  pioneer in this effort?  You talked about our

          3  franchise agreement doesn't deal with net

          4  neutrality.  I'll have to double check on that.  I

          5  thought we did talk about net neutrality in our

          6  particular franchise agreement.  I left that option

          7  open. I just want to go back.  Your reasons for this

          8  bill, is what exactly?  You really didn't talk about

          9  that.

         10                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: That the policy

         11  making process has absolutely failed to keep up with

         12  the changes and technology and the needs of the

         13  people, and that the fault is ours.  And I mean the

         14  State, and I mean the State legislature, and I mean

         15  my committee and I mean me.  We are remedying that,

         16  and we are remedying in ways that make enormous

         17  sense I think.  I am very open to change, and

         18  amendment, but to do that, I would ask you not to go

         19  and oppose something before we can engage in the

         20  process of negotiation, debate and mutual

         21  understanding.  My concern is not that in the end

         22  the City Council will take a position I don't agree

         23  with.  This is America.  My problem is that you've

         24  had less than 24 hours to look at this.  It has many

         25  things I don't think have been considered.  It has
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          2  things to answer the question you asked earlier that

          3  dramatically different.  It gives you more money for

          4  public access then you currently have available.

          5  It, in my opinion, does not take away any

          6  substantive power you have.  Those are good reasons,

          7  it seems to me, to continue a dialogue until such

          8  time when the Members of the Council and the Members

          9  of the legislature can jointly sit down and say you

         10  know we've parted company.  Local control is so

         11  important that it overrules the extra two percent.

         12  It overrules net neutrality.  It overrules the

         13  ability of New York City residents to know that

         14  there will be access for them to folks who don't

         15  live in New York City.  All those values are in

         16  bill.  I think they are sufficient to overcome the

         17  interest in local control.  Maybe not, but my plea

         18  today is please don't close the debate today.  Let's

         19  talk, and if we're wrong  --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: We're not

         21  voting today Assemblyman.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We're going to hold

         23  it open for two like we discussed.  Councilman

         24  Fidler was not here for all the testimony.  I want

         25  to give him time to read the testimony that happened
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          2  this morning, and give anybody who wanted to

          3  testified in front of him, but he's going to read

          4  the testimony anyway, a chance.  So we're not voting

          5  today.  We're going to vote in two weeks.

          6                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: I hope two weeks

          7  is enough. I'll be available in that time for any

          8  Member of the Committees.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I was going to

         10  explain that, Madam Chair.  Also, there is a

         11  possibility that within the two weeks, with all the

         12  discussions, your bill may radically change to the

         13  point where you feel that local control.  Since,

         14  especially with the New York City franchise

         15  agreement, we can add amendments to the agreement at

         16  any particular time.  It's a possibility that after

         17  discussion you may decide that local control is such

         18  a primary concern for localities that it may be the

         19  overriding factor after discussion.

         20                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: The answer to

         21  your question easily is yes, but you use the term

         22  radically change, and I would just point out that I

         23  assert to you, subject to further discussion, that

         24  the powers you have are not taken from you.  If I'm

         25  right then the amount of change of authority here is
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          2  extraordinarily small, and the first thing I would

          3  as is whether the Council's analysis of the

          4  legislation is consistent with mine.  Do you retain

          5  public right- of- way, consumer protection, PEG

          6  channel and other negotiation abilities?  And if you

          7  do, then what are we arguing about?  So yes, I'm

          8  very open- minded.  I take very seriously the views

          9  of legislative bodies.  I have spoken very publicly

         10  that legislative bodies are the champion of American

         11  democracy.  We have wonderful executives, but so did

         12  the Soviet Union.  What the difference between us

         13  and other countries is we have legislative bodies.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'm not as

         15  crazy about the Executive Branch as you are.  I

         16  think legislative bodies should be the permanent

         17  bodies and then no term limits, but then let's not

         18  go down that road.

         19                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: I think your

         20  right.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I vote aye.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And I vote

         23  aye.  You know, but clearly when you give the

         24  executive bodies the abundance of power as has

         25  happened in New York, you wind up getting situations
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          2  that truly lock out the people's opportunity to

          3  interject and advocate, but that's another

          4  discussion, Assemblymember.  I appreciate what

          5  you're saying and the intent of what you're saying,

          6  and I hope you really appreciate our concerns.  You

          7  know I understand what you're saying about the two

          8  percent increase, but other than that, frankly, I

          9  don't see what else that's going to be done that

         10  would make us feel more comfortable at this point

         11  without much further discussion  --

         12                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: I'll respond to

         13  that concern in writing, Councilman.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: All right.  I

         15  appreciate that.  Now to just one other thing.  You

         16  talked about one of the reasons you wanted to do

         17  this was build- out in areas of the State that did

         18  not have the ability to access that were going

         19  through their communities.  Who would do that build-

         20  out?  Would that be the PEG's?

         21                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: The franchise

         22  holder.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: The franchise

         24  holder.  They would build- out it out required to go

         25  straight to the consumer's home or just to the
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          2  consumer's neighborhood?

          3                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: To the home.  To

          4  the street. I want to be very, very precise here.

          5  The assumption of that means the home, but if that

          6  needs to be tightened up, we'll do it.  But to the

          7  home is the intention, and I would add, sir, that

          8  the build out requirement is part of the access

          9  concern because the access barriers I think are much

         10  more powerful social problems.  We will soon be able

         11  to provide you and every other resident of the State

         12  a map of where lines go and what the market

         13  penetration is.  If, as I suspect, there are many

         14  communities with wonderful wires down the street and

         15  no one plugged in, that remains a digital divide

         16  that this bill would deal with, that the City's bill

         17  does not.  That has an additional advantage, I

         18  believe.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Well I think I

         20  differ with you on the City's bill.  I think one of

         21  the things that we were concerned about when we did

         22  the franchise bill was the issue of local build- out

         23  and local access, and, in fact, there was a major

         24  argument ensuring that the cable companies built in

         25  minority areas first, and I'm pretty sure we covered
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          2  that in our final adoption of the bill.  I don't

          3  have a  --

          4                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: It's my

          5  understanding that you are correct, Councilman.  I

          6  was speaking more about the social access rather

          7  than the physical access problems.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Well all

          9  right.  I appreciate, again, you being here, and I

         10  did want to ask one more question on the build- out.

         11    You're going to give us a copy of the service

         12  quality study?                ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: I

         13  will get that to the two Chairs, if that is

         14  convenient, and let them distribute it to the

         15  Members.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. You

         17  talked about net neutrality, hardware build- outs,

         18  content, and have you monitored cable costs for

         19  cable access for those states that have had the

         20  similar access for a long time?

         21                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: We have

         22  monitored cable costs quite extensively.  What we

         23  have shown, and if I may ask the Committee personnel

         24  to distribute this to Members.  Look at the charts.

         25  It has only statewide franchise that has caused rate
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          2  reductions of any significant amount.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Permanent rate

          4  reductions?

          5                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Very hard to

          6  know because they're relatively new.  The cable

          7  companies argue they are not permanent.  Our

          8  information on the FCC information is they may be,

          9  but they are certainly dramatic, and if you'll turn

         10  to the charts at the back of the piece, you'll see

         11  both the information in graph form and the citations

         12  to the information that those graphs are based on.

         13  One is an FCC piece.  The other is an analysis done

         14  by the Wall Street Journal?  Somebody.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.  Just

         16  one other question.  The federal government caps

         17  gave back five percent minimum primarily.  When did

         18  the two percent formula get created and can they do

         19  this given federal guidelines at five percent?

         20                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: The five percent

         21  maximum is, I should point out by the way, not

         22  universal in the State.  There are communities that

         23  get zero.  We had testimony from the Mayor of

         24  Binghampton who is very favorably disposed to the

         25  bill knowing the local control issue because this
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          2  would increase the amount available elsewhere.  We

          3  have crafted this to give the extra two percent so

          4  that communities, including New York City, don't

          5  have to dip into the five percent to pay the cost of

          6  public access and PEG. That's how you get to seven.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: That's how you

          8  get to seven. Well wouldn't that be superseding the

          9  federal guidelines?

         10                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: No.  It's

         11  permitted.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.  All

         13  right.  Thank you, Assemblyman.  I appreciate your

         14  being here.

         15                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: If you can briefly

         17  because I'm cutting in on Charles' time here.

         18  Neutrality is a federal issue. So can you just

         19  explain how the State would even  --

         20                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Net neutrality

         21  was the policy of the United States for 122 million

         22  years.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Yes.

         24                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Under the regime

         25  now holding the reins of power, in response to the
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          2  request of the large providers, they repealed that

          3  about three, four or five years ago. The legal basis

          4  for our ability to do it is that we do it as a

          5  condition of a franchise.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So we also have

          7  that condition as well, but we just want to State-

          8  wide?

          9                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: The answer is

         10  maybe.  I don't know, but I don't know how that

         11  would work in a state where other communities didn't

         12  have it.  It makes no sense.  The reason why we are

         13  getting such broad support for this, and it's

         14  growing now that we set aside some of the lies about

         15  the bill, is that is really does address the issues

         16  of things like net neutrality effectively, not just

         17  hopefully, and does so for all the people.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

         19  Councilman Barron.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you very

         21  much, Madam Chair.  Can you just elaborate a little

         22  more on the Verizon, Cablevision supporting State-

         23  wide efforts in other areas, but you say they don't

         24  support it here because there are some disadvantages

         25  to them?  I just want a little more on the monopoly.
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          2                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Well without

          3  speaking authoritatively about somebody else, which

          4  I'm always reluctant to do, it is my understanding

          5  that the cable industry and cable companies

          6  uniformly oppose statewide franchises.  They argue

          7  that they had to go community by community and it is

          8  an inequitable advantage to the phone company now

          9  after they've built- out.

         10                 Well the problem with that argument

         11  is they got a State- wide certification for their

         12  entry into telephone service, and they didn't have

         13  to go community by community.  So their argument

         14  lacks a certain  --  It's not well thought through.

         15  Verizon, and other phone companies, like a statewide

         16  franchise because it does ease access.  They claim

         17  that will bring them into the market.  They claim

         18  that will bring  --  Did I fail to acknowledge my

         19  colleague, Mr. Ignizio, earlier?  Nice to see you,

         20  the former ranking member of the committee.  My

         21  apologies, but your sign is white.  I don't think

         22  that means anything, but it does strike as why I

         23  didn't notice it.  I apologize, Mr. Barron, for the

         24  interruption.

         25                 Verizon likes it because they say it
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          2  facilitates their entry into the communities.  They

          3  have supported build- out requirements in other

          4  states, such as New Jersey, but not to the extent we

          5  require it.  They also strenuously object to the net

          6  neutrality provisions, on essentially the grounds,

          7  it's our toy, we should be able to play with it.  My

          8  position is that the public rights- of- way and the

          9  means of communication are matters of enormous

         10  social interest, and that the government speaking on

         11  behalf of the community should be able to set

         12  reasonable rules and regulations about that.  So

         13  that in New York when this bill is presented in

         14  addition to the distinguished Chairman, Cablevision,

         15  The Cable Association, Verizon and The Telephone

         16  Association all oppose the bill.  Cablevision has

         17  lobbied extremely actively which is their perfect

         18  right, sometimes inaccurately, which is also their

         19  right, and we will deal with that as we think fit as

         20  events unfold.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: It's not as

         22  easy to say if they're for it then we've got to be

         23  against it, but I find that interesting that to find

         24  opposing something that it has to be something good

         25  in it for the people and for local franchising.
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          2                 The other piece, and I know you may

          3  have addressed it already, is there anything that

          4  you single out that might be taken out  --  I know

          5  that you have been asked this already  -- from the

          6  local authority?  Is there any one thing that having

          7  the State control this that would take away  --

          8                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: I would like to

          9  answer that question much more carefully in writing,

         10  and I am going to, but for today the answer is yes,

         11  the ability to hold up your hand and say aye or nay

         12  on a franchise.  But you ability to regulate them in

         13  every other way you would maintain, and not as a

         14  grant from Albany at our pleasure, but as a matter

         15  of law as powerful as is today your grant of

         16  authority to do what you do today.  It is a formal

         17  loss of authority.  In practice it is not a loss,

         18  and it brings with it such enormous gains that I

         19  urge you to rethink or think about the positions

         20  that the Council may take.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I'm going to

         22  stay very, very open on this, and I do appreciate

         23  your presentation, but I just wanted to get to the

         24  bottom line.  When you don't have the authority to

         25  say yes or no this is always a question of power and
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          2  who we want to trust with the power.  Even if it

          3  meets all of the PEG channels, right- of- way, all

          4  of the things that you mentioned that we would still

          5  have, but the bottom line when you cannot say yea or

          6  nay  --

          7                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: May I ask a

          8  question?  Power over what?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Yea or nay, or

         10  gets the franchise.

         11                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Well maybe

         12  that's not power. Maybe that's just a symbol of

         13  power.  Maybe the power is the ability to regulate

         14  PEG channels, or public rights- of- way, or consumer

         15  protection.  Maybe that's the power that you really

         16  exercise.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: But maybe the

         18  bottom line, after you regulate all of that, and you

         19  have to make a decision on who gets it, now to me

         20  that's a form of power as well.

         21                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: And that is

         22  retained with you in this bill.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Well not

         24  really if you say we lose the right to say yea or

         25  nay over who gets the franchise.
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          2                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Respectfully,

          3  you maintain the power to protect public rights- of-

          4  way  --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: No.  I got

          6  that part.  I got that part.  I'm saying  --

          7                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Then what's

          8  left?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Who gets the

         10  franchise.

         11                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Fair enough.  I

         12  think in the end that's fair, and the question then

         13  is whether the other values in the bill, not just on

         14  franchising, but on broadband  --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I got you.  I

         16  got you. That's why I'm going to stay open, but the

         17  bottom line is that we do lose the power to say yea

         18  or nay over who gets a franchise even if all the

         19  regulation and everything is in there, those are the

         20  good parts of the bill, but in reality we do lose

         21  that power.

         22                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Yes, you do, and

         23  as I've said, I think at least repeatedly, if not

         24  effectively, is that is the symbol of the power.

         25  The real power is retained by the City.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And since we've

          3  done it so well I know the Assembly will consider

          4  amending their bill to take out those cities with a

          5  million or more.  Council Member Arroyo.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Just to

          7  follow- up on Council Member Barron, I think that's

          8  the point.  That's why we don't like what's being

          9  proposed.  I want a clarification on the point that

         10  you made earlier on we're responding to something

         11  that we've only had 24 hours to read or look at.

         12                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: That's my

         13  understanding.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: But it was out

         15  three weeks ago.

         16                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: At least.  Maybe

         17  more.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: What took so

         19  long?

         20                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: I don't know.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: So the folks

         22  that came here testifying against the law that your

         23  proposing had the same 24 hours to review?

         24                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: No.  They had

         25  three and a half weeks.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Those that are

          3  asking us not to vote in favor of the resolution  --

          4                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: I only heard

          5  some of the testimony.  I heard some people for the

          6  bill and some against it. Both, I believe, have seen

          7  the actual bill for three weeks at least.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: And we only

          9  had 24 hours?

         10                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: That's my

         11  understanding, but I'm interfering in the internal

         12  processes of the Council and I'm not comfortable.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Okay.  That

         14  seems unfair.

         15                 I got real excited about something

         16  you said earlier, something about affordability and

         17  that the law would make access to hardware to

         18  communities that otherwise wouldn't have it under

         19  the current law.  Does this mean that folks are

         20  going to get this installed for free that otherwise

         21  not pay for it?

         22                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: No.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: So what's the

         24  difference?

         25                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Well those
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          2  elements of the bill that we're now discussing are

          3  not  --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: I just saw

          5  people in my community getting computers for free.

          6  That's what I heard.  That's what I interpreted by

          7  what you said so I got real excited.

          8                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Well I don't

          9  blame you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: But that's not

         11  going to happen.  Right?

         12                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: No.  That's not

         13  what I said. I haven't been able to say anything

         14  quite yet, but let me try.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Okay.

         16                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: What I said is

         17  that that section of the bill that deals with that

         18  is the broadband section. It's not the franchising

         19  section per say, which is why it's called an omnibus

         20  telephone bill.  If the Committee would like to

         21  explore in more detail how we're going to do this,

         22  I'd be glad to do it, but it is in a different

         23  section of the same bill you are today considering

         24  opposing.  It's not in the franchising section.

         25  It's in the broadband section.  Although the
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          2  franchising section has responsibilities that could

          3  be used as the basis for achieving that.  But I want

          4  to be clear.  There is no sentence in the bill that

          5  gives free computers to anybody.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So you're saying

          7  they're both in the bill.  There just in different

          8  sections, and the portion that you were talking

          9  about before was in the broadband section.

         10                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Nowhere in the

         11  bill is there a sentence that says the people in the

         12  State of New York would get free computers.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: That might help

         14  you.

         15                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: It might, but

         16  unfortunately that's not anything we've yet

         17  included.  What we do have is an approach to

         18  broadband access that goes beyond where the wire is

         19  and talks about the cost of service, the cost of the

         20  hardware that people may have to buy with it.

         21  Whether that results in free computers in some

         22  places will be a question that we still need to work

         23  out.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: May I?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Sure.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I think what the

          3  Council Member is asking is when you testify that

          4  folks in every community, maybe the underperforming

          5  communities, will be able to get services better and

          6  that this bill is a better thing for them, I think

          7  what she is trying to ask is how is that.

          8                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: I hope I

          9  respectfully replied saying if you want to go into a

         10  discussion now, which I'm willing to do, on the

         11  elements of the broadband proposal, we can do that.

         12                 Right now in the budget process, we

         13  are laboring under how we deal with that with an

         14  appropriation as much $50 or as low as $1 million

         15  dollars to deal with these kind of questions.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: That's much

         17  more detailed. Your statement led me to believe that

         18  the affordability for communities who right now are

         19  having a difficult time accessing the service would

         20  get it easier  --

         21                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: That is my

         22  position.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:   --  And for

         24  no cost, or low cost.

         25                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: I never said no
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          2  cost, and I didn't say low cost because I don't know

          3  what that means.  I did say easier.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: I just want

          5  you to understand that from your statement that is

          6  what I understood.

          7                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Then I mis-

          8  spoke.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Okay.  Thank

         10  you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: If you could send

         12  the Committee details on why access would be easier

         13  and more cost efficient for certain communities, we

         14  would appreciate it, under the broadband.

         15                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Delighted.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And I want to point

         17  out something that Council Member Arroyo asked which

         18  is the three weeks that the legislation was out   --

         19    So basically we're acknowledging that the cable

         20  companies and PEG's testified today on the new piece

         21  of legislation because that's been out there for a

         22  few weeks.  The Committee Members should know that

         23  just because we didn't have doesn't mean that the

         24  testimony that happened today was not for the new

         25  piece of legislation.
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          2                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: I don't know

          3  what the other witnesses testified to, and what

          4  their state of knowledge was.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

          6  Vann.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Thank you, Madam

          8  Chair.  First of all, I just wanted to welcome you

          9  to City Hall and to our distinguished place where we

         10  hang out, and to say I think personally that you

         11  would have made an outstanding Comptroller by the

         12  way, but I had nothing to do with that.

         13                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Yeah well thank

         14  you, Mr. Vann. I appreciate it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Actually it came

         16  down to Charles' colloquy with you, and that is

         17  whether or not the City Council perceived a loss of

         18  power, and as you know power can be both perceived

         19  and real just as you say it's a symbol and not

         20  power.  I think where it rests with some of us, and

         21  you know how jealously we regard what we think is

         22  our right.  We do it in the State.  We do it here as

         23  well.  So I think clarification on that little point

         24  is key whether or not we perceive that we're losing

         25  our right of power, and as you sort of indicate that
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          2  you're not really losing the right, you're losing

          3  the symbol.  That's the point I think that we've got

          4  to clarify.

          5                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: May I take

          6  another stab at that in a more measured way?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Yes, sure.

          8                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: First of all,

          9  your franchise is for what ten years?  How long does

         10  a franchise last that you just granted?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Fifteen.

         12                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: So that the

         13  first thing I tell you is you wouldn't even have

         14  this  --  This matter won't come before you for

         15  fifteen years.  This only becomes relevant in the

         16  year 2022, but you know you've got to protect the

         17  power of future Council's and that's relevant.  I

         18  would liken this to an analysis of the exercise of

         19  power in a democracy as to whom makes decisions, and

         20  who those decisions affect.  The decision that is

         21  removed from you affects only the Council.  The

         22  decisions you retain affect your constituents.  You

         23  retain the power to deal with consumer complaints as

         24  they affect your constituents.  You retain the power

         25  on rights- of- way which affect your communities.
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          2  You decide about PEG channels.  Now what don't you

          3  decide?  As Councilman Barron and yourself pointed

          4  out, you don't decide on who gets the franchise.

          5  Well who in the community is injured by that loss of

          6  symbolic power?  I can't think of anybody. As we say

          7  in Yiddish of the Council, of the legislature is not

          8  a small matter and it is well thought and well

          9  spoken to ask should we be giving that up, but my

         10  response is that if I'm right that the benefits to

         11  the people who use the system are thus and so and

         12  the loss is essentially a symbolic loss that does

         13  not affect them, then it is a bargain worth making

         14  in my opinion.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: I understand,

         16  and I guess it's whether it's being received by a

         17  politician or a statesperson.

         18                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Everyone here is

         19  a statesperson.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Very good.  I'm

         21  through.  Thank you.

         22                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: I'm sure you

         23  agree, Mr. Vann.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: I can only speak

         25  for myself.

                                                            89

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We are also trying

          3  to protect the institution, which I know that you

          4  understand wholeheartedly.

          5                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Full well, and I

          6  admire that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Having served with

          8  you, I know you understand that.  Are we finished?

          9  I want you to know Assemblyman Brodsky this is one

         10  of the few meetings we've ever had of this length

         11  that people actually stayed not only  --

         12                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Is this good?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I don't know if

         14  it's good or not, but it's a fact  --  stayed not

         15  only the Members, and some of them just left, but

         16  also the people to hear what you had to say, and we

         17  welcome you in the Council anytime.

         18                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Let me thank

         19  each and every Member of the Council for their

         20  attention.  Let me thank you and Chairman Fidler for

         21  their extraordinary flexibility and generosity in

         22  allowing me to appear with such little notice.  I

         23  thought the discussion was a good one, and I look

         24  forward to continuing it over time.  I hope that two

         25  weeks is enough, but it's not.  My position on the
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          2  resolution before you is please take no action until

          3  we can conclude speedy, thoughtful and effective

          4  discussions.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We never do.

          6                 ASSEMBLYMAN BRODSKY: Thank you so

          7  much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you,

          9  Assemblyman.

         10  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

         11  LANCE VAN ARSDALE

         12  LOCAL UNION NO. 3, IBEW

         13                 My name is Lance Van Ardsale.  I am

         14  the Assistant Business Manager of Local Union No.3,

         15  International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers.  I

         16  have been associated with this organization for over

         17  30 years and represent a membership of 35,000

         18  hardworking and dedicated men and women.  Local

         19  Union No. 3, IBEW has helped to build and expand the

         20  complex fiber- rich networks and robust

         21  infrastructure throughout the City of New York,

         22  above and below the ground, enabling the growth of

         23  cable television and other services. Nearly a

         24  million and a half customers are served by Time

         25  Warner Cable and we are proud of the contributions
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          2  we have made together with the company.  Thank you

          3  for this opportunity to submit comments on their

          4  behalf as you review and examine statewide cable

          5  franchising issues.

          6                 We have worked closely for over two

          7  decades with Time Warner Cable and our relationship

          8  during this time has been very positive.  We have

          9  been part and parcel of the company through several

         10  franchise renewals.  The company has provided

         11  training, benefits and jobs for our members, who

         12  represent thousands of New Yorkers  --  employees

         13  who, with their families, reside in the towns,

         14  neighborhoods and villages in and around New York

         15  City.

         16                 On their behalf, and from my

         17  perspective, I wish to point out that the current

         18  franchise system is working well for all parties.

         19  It does not appear that any legislation is required.

         20  However, if legislation is passed, IBEW's Local 3

         21  strongly urges that nay new entrant be treated in

         22  the same manner and held to the same standards as

         23  the existing cable companies.  In other words, that

         24  a level playing field exist across the board, in

         25  every aspect of both operations and obligations.
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          2                 I want to be very clear: New entrants

          3  to the video business are welcome to join the

          4  industry  --  after all, competition is good for

          5  everyone.  But nothing should be done to

          6  disenfranchise Time Warner Cable in any way, nor

          7  should any new entrant be held to a different

          8  standard or relieved of any requirement which the

          9  incumbent operator is expected to meet.

         10                 Time Warner Cable's continued success

         11  is vital to many of our IBEW members and New York

         12  State should not threaten that by setting different

         13  and unfair standards for competitors in the same

         14  business.

         15                 Thank you for this opportunity.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We are going to

         17  keep this hearing open for two weeks.  We thank

         18  everyone for their patience today and the great

         19  discussion.

         20                 The vote is 18 to zero in favor of

         21  the agenda before the Land Use Committee.

         22                 (Hearing concluded at 12:15 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, LORI KLEIN, do hereby certify that

         10  the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of

         11  the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.
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         17  set my hand this 22nd day of March 2007.
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